
Deputy Leader 
 

Venue: Town Hall,  
Moorgate Street, 
Rotherham.  S60  2TH 

Date: Monday, 17th December, 2012 

  Time: 9.30 a.m. 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 

 
1. To determine if the following matters are to be considered under the categories 

suggested in accordance with the Local Government Act 1972.  
  

 
2. To determine any item which the Chairman is of the opinion should be 

considered as a matter of urgency.  
  

 
3. Minutes of the Previous Meeting held on 19th November, 2012 (herewith). 

(Pages 1 - 5) 
  

 
4. Annual Review - Insurance and Risk Management Performance (Pages 6 - 12) 
  

 
5. Cabinet Reports (Directors to report).  
  

 
6. Members' Issues (Directors to report).  
  

 
7. Exclusion of the Press and Public  

 
The following item is likely to be considered in the absence of the press and 
public as being exempt under Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the 
Local Government Act 1972 (as amended March 2006 – information relates to 
finance and business affairs). 

 
8. Exemption from Standing Orders - EDRMS (Pages 13 - 14) 
  

 
9. Date and Time of the Next Meeting.  

 
- Monday, 14th January, 2013 at 9.30 a.m. 

 

 



DEPUTY LEADER - 19/11/12 23N 

 

 

DEPUTY LEADER 
19th November, 2012 

 
 
Present:- Councillor Akhtar (in the Chair). 

 

Apologies for absence:- Apologies were received from Councillor Gosling and Sims.  
 
N37. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON 8TH OCTOBER, 2012  

 
 Resolved:-  That the minutes of the meeting held on 8th October, 2012 be 

approved as a correct record. 
 

N38. LOCAL GOVERNMENT PAY ISSUES AND LIVING WAGE  

 
 Consideration was given to a report presented by Phil Howe, Director of 

Human Resources which provided information on the current levels of pay in 
the Council and pressures to respond to the Trade Union sponsored ‘Living 
Wage’ campaign. 
 
It was acknowledged that in this period of austerity and pay restraint, the 
situation in respect of relative pay levels was something that was receiving 
more publicity.  Increases in the National Minimum wage rates at a time when 
Local Government (unlike other public sector employers) had had to apply a pay 
freeze which meant both this benchmark rate plus those rates paid to some 
comparable occupations in the private sector had significantly narrowed or in 
some isolated instances even overtaken our rates of pay.   
 
A recent comparison of various comparator jobs had been undertaken and 
would suggest that even allowing for other sectors not being held back by 
national pay restraint the rates being paid in general at the bottom end of the 
Council’s pay structure still remained in excess of private sector rates.   
 
Currently there was a significant campaign from the TUC and individual Trade 
Unions lobbying Councils to support a drive towards paying a ‘Living Wage’ 
assessed at £7.45 per hour.  Rotherham had more than 1500 employees 
paid below this level in occupations such as cleaning, catering, grounds 
maintenance and waste collection labourers.  The implications of a migration to 
such minimum levels would be significant for Rotherham’s job evaluated pay 
structure and indeed overall costs/budget pressures.  It should be noted that 
a move to a minimum rate of £7.45 would result in an immediate cost to the 
Council of over £900K plus an additional £1m from incremental progression 
(subject to satisfactory performance).  An additional 850 colleagues in schools 
could also be affected giving a further potential cost of over £600K plus 
equivalent incremental pressures if applied.  
 
The Council remained committed to supporting national pay bargaining and 
was awaiting the outcome of proposals in respect of next year’s pay settlement 
(2013/14) and had already committed to reinstating incremental progression 
next year.  Increments due to our lowest paid on grades A and B were applied 
this year as a concession to in some way address the consequences of the 
recession affecting the low paid.  The national pay negotiations were 
anticipating some form of offer to the workforce this year albeit in the light of 

Agenda Item 3Page 1



24N DEPUTY LEADER - 19/11/12
  
 

 

continuing budget challenge this was anticipated to be minimal and may include 
balancing changes to some terms and conditions of employment and/or 
bottom-loaded effect to support lower paid.  These were still to be determined, 
but would be sought to be applied whatever was agreed nationally. 
 
It was acknowledged that this was a very emotive area and that a briefing note 
should be provided for the Deputy Leader to share with all Members. 
 
Resolved:-  That the update on National pay negotiations be received and the 
proposed approach to pay and benefits, including the continued promotion of 
various relevant  initiatives to support Council employees, be noted. 
 

N39. TABLET COMPUTING  
 

 Consideration was given to a report presented by Richard Copley, Corporate 
ICT Manager, which sought approval for a trial of Council issued tablet 
computers as a potential alternative to Council issued laptops. 
 
In view of the developments outlined in the report, it was now possible to offer 
tablets to Members which would be made on a trial basis initially, in order to 
test their suitability as laptop replacements and to judge their effectiveness in 
reducing our reliance on paper agenda packs. 
 
The trial would run until the end of March, 2013 at which time a report would 
be presented to the Deputy Leader on the outcomes of the trial. 
 
The exact make and model of tablets to be trialled was yet to be determined, 
but one of the aims of the trial would be to help identify the most suitable tablet 
for Members. It was proposed, therefore, that a variety of tablet types were 
trialled. 
 
There would be no requirement for Members to return their current laptop 
whilst they were trying a tablet device at this stage, but should the trial lead to 
a wider deployment then the proposal would be that Members and officers 
must choose between a tablet or laptop as it would not be possible financially to 
provide both. 
 
It was noted that many Members and officers already accessed the Council’s 
systems from their personal tablets and smartphones using the secure Good 
app. The same solution would apply during the trial, the only difference being 
that the tablets would be Council owned and issued rather than belonging to 
the individual. As with employee owned devices the Council issued tablets would 
not connect to the corporate data network, but would instead use the public 
Council WiFi which was available in several Council buildings. They would also be 
able to connect to other public WiFi networks and the user’s own WiFi at 
home. 
 
It should be noted that it was not currently possible for the Council to control all 
parts of a tablet device. This was not currently the case for Council issued 
laptops. Tablet devices work in a way which meant that the only parts of the 
tablet which could be centrally controlled were:- 
 
 

Page 2



DEPUTY LEADER - 19/11/12 25N 

 

 

• Any system within the Good for Enterprise container – this currently 
included email, calendar, contacts, web browsing, web based Council 
applications, the Intranet. 

 

• Any system delivered through a thin client window (under the Thin Client 
model the applications were installed on servers in the data centre and 
no processing was done on the end user’s device.  This gave much 
greater flexibility and choice as to the variety of devices that could be 
enabled access from). 

 
It was pointed out that any Council data which resided within the Good app or 
the thin client window was protected against loss and was remotely removed in 
the event of a device being lost or stolen. All other parts of the tablet were 
uncontrolled. As with “Bring Your Own Device”, this did not pose a data security 
risk as it was not permitted for data to be transferred out of the Good app or 
the thin client window to other areas of the tablet. 
 
In order to comply with the Council’s Information Security Policy steps would be 
taken to limit the possibility of the user using the tablet’s own browser (outside 
of Good) to visit inappropriate websites. Similarly there was a need to minimise 
the risk of the user installing inappropriate apps, such as games, from the App 
Store or Market Place. Configuration changes would be implemented before 
issuing the device which would restrict some of this functionality. There were 
no such concerns when an individual was using a device that they owned as 
they were at liberty to install games and browse sites as they see fit. As part of 
the trial the best options would continue to be reviewed for securing tablets in 
order that data remained safe whilst not impacting usability for Members. 
 
Further information was provided on the usability options and the functionality 
for Members and officers, which also included thin client technology. 
 
Discussion ensued on the costs associated with the proposed trial, which 
would result in savings to the Council through reduced costs in hardware and 
in printing agenda documentation, the stability and resilience of the WiFi 
network, security, portability and transportation and the  exploration of 
technological advances in software. 
 
Resolved:-  That the proposed trial of tablet devices amongst Members of the 
Planning Board and the Cabinet be approved. 
 

N40. CABINET REPORTS  
 

 Phil Howe, Director of Human Resources, referred to a report that would be 
submitted to the Cabinet shortly on “Public Health” detailing proposals about 
various reporting arrangements and detailing where this new function would 
best ‘sit’ within the Council structure when formally transferring to the Council 
in April 2013.  
 
Resolved:-  That the information be noted. 
 

N41. MEMBERS' ISSUES  
 

 There were no outstanding Members’ issues to report. 

Page 3



26N DEPUTY LEADER - 19/11/12
  
 

 

 
 
(THE CHAIRMAN AUTHORISED CONSIDERATION OF THE FOLLOWING ITEM IN ORDER 
TO PROGRESS THE INFORMATION REFERRED TO)  
  
N42. RESOURCES PERFORMANCE REPORT FOR 2012/13 - QUARTER 2  

 
 Consideration was given to a report presented by Sue Wilson, Performance 

and Quality Manager, which summarised the performance by the Resources 
Directorate against current measures and key service delivery issues during 
Quarter 2 across the areas of:- 
 

• Commissioning, Policy and Performance. 

• Financial Services. 

• Human Resources and Payroll. 

• Internal audit and Asset Management. 

• Legal and Democratic Services. 
 
Work continued to review services and embed planning processes and 
priorities within the Directorate.  A series of benchmarking reviews were 
recently undertaken to assess the value for money that Resources services 
provided when comparing with comparable public and/or private sector 
benchmarking information. The reviews were carried out in conjunction with 
critical friend Directors who provided valuable challenge and support to the 
Service Managers and the key findings would be presented to the Deputy 
Leader at a number of pre-arranged briefings. 
 
Discussion ensued on the presentation of the information and the new layout 
and narrative was supported. 
 
Resolved:-  That the performance achieved against key priorities and indicators 
be noted. 
 

N43. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 

 Resolved:-  That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, 
the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of 
business on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local 
Government Act (as amended March, 2006 (information relates to finance 
and business affairs). 
 

N44. PROCUREMENT OF COUNCIL TAX SUPPORT SOFTWARE  
 

 Consideration was given to a report presented by Colin Earl, Director of Internal 
Audit and Asset Management, which set out details of the requirement for the 
Council to adopt a local Council Tax Support Scheme from 1st April 2013, and 
the need for the continuation of the current software for administering Council 
Tax and Council Tax Benefit to be further developed and updated.  
 
An exemption from Standing Orders was required to enable the Council to 
procure new, additional software development as the provision of the CTS 
software could only be supplied by the current supplier. 

Page 4



DEPUTY LEADER - 19/11/12 27N 

 

 

 
Resolved:-  That the contract for the purchase of CTS software be exempt from 
the provisions of Standing Order 48.1 (requirement to invite between three and 
six tenders for contracts with an estimated value of £50k or more) and the 
purchase be made from the current supplier. 
 

N45. DATE AND TIME OF THE NEXT MEETING  
 

 Resolved:-  That a further meeting be held on Monday, 17th December, 2012 at 
9.30 a.m. 
 

 

Page 5



 
 
1.  Meeting: Deputy Leader 

2.  Date: 17 December 2012 

3.  Title: Annual Review – Insurance and Risk 
Management Performance 
 

4.  Directorate: Resources 

 
 
5. Summary 
 
This report refers to the numbers and costs of insurance claims made against the 
Council.  
 
The Council continues to have a very good and improving record in most areas. 
Proactive risk management measures are helping to reduce the number of claims 
made against the Council and effective monitoring / inspection systems are enabling 
the Council to successfully defend many claims that are received.  
 
The report highlights areas where risk management action is helping to achieve the 
greatest savings in support of the Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy. It also 
shows areas where opportunities may exist to improve performance and reduce 
costs further. 
 
 
6. Recommendations 
 
The Deputy Leader is asked: 
 

• to note the generally good performance of the Council in managing its 
risks and minimising successful insurance claims against the Council.  

 

• to note the current issues referred to in Section 7.6 of the report. 
 
 
 
 
 

ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL – REPORT TO MEMBERS 

Agenda Item 4Page 6



 

7. Proposals and Details 
 
7.1 Insurance claims and costs 2002/03 to 2011/12 
 

A summary of claims received by the Council over the past ten years, relating 
to the five main areas of insurance risk, is contained in the following table.  

 

Numbers and Costs of Claims Received 2002/03 to 2011/12 

Area of Risk No. of Claims Cost of Claims 

Public Liability 3,094 £4.111m 

Employers’ Liability 555 £4.018m 

Highways 2,254 £1.752m 

Motor Vehicle 3,646 £3.259m 

Fire 73 £1.700m 

2002/03 to 2011/12 9,622 £14.840m 

 
On average, the Council has paid almost £1.5m per year on insurance claims 
over the last 10 years. The need to continue to invest in reducing the costs of 
accidents via improved management systems, work environment and training 
cannot be overstated, in order to keep the cost of claims as low as possible.  

 
7.2 High Performing Areas  
 

o School Fires 
o Highways Trips and Slips 
o Recovery of Uninsured Motor Vehicle Accident Losses 
o School Fires 

 
7.2.1 School Fires 
 

Rotherham’s claims record on fire across all properties is very good and our 
claims experience with regards to school fires is excellent.  
 
School risk surveys arranged by the Council’s Insurance and Risk 
Management Service have been used to highlight the needs of each school 
and the steps they could put in place to minimise the risk of claimable 
incidents. Subsequent risk management work has been agreed between 
building managers and head teachers, and implemented wherever possible. 
This work has provided the platform for the Council’s exemplary record. 
 
The Council now substantially out-performs other authorities, as can be seen 
from the table below, which is based on fires occurring since 2007.  

Page 7



 

 Rotherham 
 

National 
Average 

Difference 
+/- 

 £ £ £ 

Average Cost per Claim 3,120 60,000 - 56,880 

Cost of Claims per School per Year 27 896 - 869 

 
The difference in performance, based on the number of schools at 
Rotherham, means that the Council spends £97,000 less per year than the 
average figure on school fires. 
 

7.2.2 Highways Trips and Slips 
 

Despite the emergence of numerous aggressive claims management 
companies in the last 10 years and their high-profile ‘no win – no fee’ 
marketing campaigns, Rotherham continues to manage highways risks very 
successfully. The current claim repudiation rate (i.e. closed without payment) 
of 89% makes the Council amongst the best performing in this regard. 
 
Performance is shown in the table below. 

 

Highways Liability PI Claims Performance 2006/07 to 2010/11 

Year Claims 
Received 

Settled at Nil Total Claims 
Paid 

Ave Cost per 
Claim 

2007 191 161 (87%) £141,894 £4,729 

2008 202 182 (90%) £147,158 £7,745 

2009 160 127 (79%) £226,193 £8,078 

2010 284 259 (91%) £103,447 £6,896 

2011 375 337 (89%) £39,636 £2,331 

 
The Council’s proactive highways inspection and maintenance regimes 
contribute significantly to this performance. 

 
7.2.3 Recovery of Uninsured Motor Vehicle Accident Losses 
 

Rotherham has historically self-funded all costs arising from accidental 
damage to its own motor fleet, even in instances where that damage had 
been incurred as a consequence of negligence on the part of a third party (i.e. 
non-fault claims). 
 
However, at the end of 2005, the Risk Management Section appointed MAPS 
Legal Assistance on an initial one year basis to recover damages from third 
parties. Since taking on their first case in November 2005, MAPS has 
recouped over £148,000 for the authority in lieu of our repair costs.  
 

Page 8



 
7.3 Areas where performance is improving 
 

o Employer’s Liability Claims 
o Motor Vehicle Claims 

 
7.3.1 Employer’s Liability Claims 
 

Employer’s Liability risk has been a concern for local authorities for some 
years, particularly in respect of degenerative type injuries including Vibration 
White Finger, Noise Induced Hearing Loss, Manual Handling and Repetitive 
Strain Injury claims.  
 
At Rotherham, the Health & Safety Team has carried out a wide range of risk 
management activities to minimise the risk of injuries and this is having a 
positive effect on both the number of claims received and the Council’s ability 
to defend or minimise the payments made against such claims. This positive 
trend is demonstrated by the statistics below: 

 

 2006/07 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 Total 

Total No. Claims 62 49 45 43 39 238 

Closed Claims – Paid 36 37 23 12 12 120 

Closed Claims – Not Paid 26 10 20 21 6 83 

No. Closed Claims - 
Total 

62 47 43 33 18 203 

Total Cost of Closed 
Claims 

383.2k 575.9k 223.0k 140.0k 116.7k 1,438.8k 

 
The statistics show: 

 
o The number of claims is reducing year on year 

 
o A reduction in the overall cost of claims paid to date. 
 

7.3.2 Motor Vehicle Claims 
 
The number of motor vehicle claims received has reduced year on year since 
2007/08 from 455 to 208 in 2011/12 (a 54% reduction), as has the cost of 
claims from £590.3k to £119.0k (a 79% reduction).  
 
It is acknowledged that the externalisation of the 2010 Repairs & Maintenance 
function, together with their vehicles, had a positive effect on these figures. 
However, other initiatives such as driver training and the installation of 
cameras on Refuse Collection Vehicles have also undoubtedly proved 
influential. 
 
The re-centralisation of vehicles at Hellaby Depot has also proved beneficial.  
In addition, 106 claims have been received thus far in 2012/13, which 
suggests that further reductions may be realised at the end of the financial 
year. 

Page 9



7.4 Trips and slips on Housing owned footpaths & walkways  
 
The Council’s performance relating to claims for trips and slips on housing 
owned footpaths and walkways remains an area for possible improvement.  
 
Since the termination of 2010 Rotherham Ltd in July 2011, 28 claims have 
been received relating to incidents occurring on Housing owned footpaths. Of 
these, 24 remain outstanding with claim reserves totalling £160,400. Three 
have been settled without payment and 1 was settled at a cost of £6,900. 
 
The implementation of a sound system of inspection would improve 
repudiation rates and cut costs to the authority in the medium term.  
 
We are working with housing services in developing their approach. 

 
 
7.5 The level of the Insurance Fund 
 

The insurer’s current compulsory policy excess (£100,000) means that the 
large majority of claims (those below this level) have to be met directly out of 
the Council’s Insurance Fund. 
 
A gradual increase in claims up to 2006 led to an increase in the Insurance 
Fund provision required to meet estimated claims’ costs. However, since 
2006, strengthened risk management and a consequent reduction in claims 
have enabled the provision to be reduced significantly over this period. 
 
The reduction in the numbers and costs of claims can be seen in the bar chart 
below. Monthly changes in the overall claims’ provision and a trend line are 
shown in the chart. 
 

 
 

Page 10



 
The provision required to meet outstanding claims has reduced from £7.5 m in 
2004 to £4.6m currently. This has enabled £2m to be released from the 
Insurance Fund to support the Council’s General Fund budget position. 
 
The Council needs to be continually alert to any new claims activity. Relatively 
new areas of claims activity such as disease caused by exposure to asbestos 
dust/fibres and abuse-type claims emphasize the need for adequate 
management systems to manage risks in all areas. 
 
In the past five years Rotherham has received three claims in respect of 
asbestosis. Two of the asbestosis claims were successfully defended but in 
the third, where the mother of an employee contracted the disease as a 
consequence of inhaling fibres whilst washing her son’s work clothes, liability 
was attached to the Council. 
 
The Council presently also has two high value on-going abuse-type claims.  
 
The Council will appreciate that it will not take too many claims of this nature 
to affect the financial standing of the insurance fund. 

 
 
7.6 Current issues 
 

Municipal Mutual Insurance, Trigger Litigation – One of the Authority’s 
previous insurers, Municipal Mutual Insurance (MMI), had been seeking 
clarification of its liability to indemnify policyholders in respect of historic 
employee mesothelioma claims, which led to test litigation known as the 
“Employers Liability Trigger Litigation”. The outcome of this litigation was that 
the Supreme Court subsequently found against MMI.  
 
This has led to MMI circulated a letter dated 13 November 2012 advising that 
the Company will have insufficient funds to meet its liabilities and confirming 
the Directors of the company had placed it into liquidation. Any shortfall in 
funding experienced by the Company has to be met by the mutual members, 
including Rotherham MBC.  
 
An Administrator who has been appointed to deal with the Company’s affairs 
is expected to give the Council an estimate of its potential liability in the near 
future. It is hoped the Insurance Fund can make a significant contribution 
towards any liability, thereby reducing any impact on the General Fund.  
 
Claims Handling Protocols: ‘The Jackson Reforms’ – Following on from 
2009’s reduction in the time allowed to deal with Motor claims from 90 days to 
15 days, it had been widely predicted for some time that similar measures 
would be applied to Public Liability claims in an attempt to address spiralling 
costs and speed up the legal process .This resulted in a review conducted by 
Lord Justice Jackson, known as ‘The Jackson Reforms’, the key task of which 
was to address disproportionate costs in civil litigation – i.e. to make it 
cheaper and more efficient.  

Page 11



The implementation of these reforms will place additional pressure on the 
Insurance and Risk Management Section and also colleagues within other 
Directorates involved in the collation of claims information. Whilst it is thought 
unlikely that the time allowed to reach a decision on liability will be cut as 
drastically as it was in the case of motor claims, both 30 and 45 days have 
been mooted as possibilities. Failure to provide requisite information within 
the stipulated timescales could result in claims being lost by default. 
 
Directorates will be notified of developments as and when the definitive 
liability period has been declared and will be assisted in complying with the 
new timescales. 

 
8. Finance 

Financial implications have already been identified elsewhere in this report, 
however, it should be stressed that the compulsory policy excess (£100,000 
on each and every claim) means that the vast majority of claims are met 
directly from the authority’s Insurance Fund. 
 

9. Risks and Uncertainties 
The Council attempts to prevent, minimise and control claims as outlined 
above. Positive action results in a decrease in the number of claims and 
settlement costs, a subsequent reduction in employee hours/costs incurred in 
investigating claims and a greater likelihood of reduced insurance premiums 
in the future as a consequence of an improved claims history.  
 
To assist our attempts to prevent /minimise claims, the Council uses 10 free 
days Risk Management or Loss Control training provided by the Council’s 
claims handlers; Gallagher Bassett. These days have helped officers to 
identify and implement improved risk management actions.   

 
10. Policy and Performance Agenda Implications 

Claims management procedures play an important role in both informing and 
influencing all elements of risk management. Risk management is one of the 
dimensions of good corporate governance. It is all encompassing and impacts 
on all areas of the Council's Policy and Performance Agenda. 

 
 
11. Background Papers and Consultation 
 

• CIPFA Insurance Benchmarking Surveys 2008 – 2011 

• MMI Briefing Notes, August 2011 to date 

• Gallagher Bassett, Risk Control Services Report, Version 4 
 
 
 
Contact Names: 
Colin Earl, Director of Audit and Asset Management, x22033 
Andrew Shaw, Insurance and Risk Manager, x22088 
 
 

Page 12



Agenda Item 8 Page 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting held on 19th November, 2012 (herewith).
	4 Annual Review - Insurance and Risk Management Performance
	8 Exemption from Standing Orders - EDRMS

